
 

 
 
To all Councillors of Ipswich Borough Council 
 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the IPSWICH BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, IPSWICH at 6.00 pm 
on WEDNESDAY, 31 OCTOBER 2012, when the following business is proposed to be 
transacted:- 
 
 

1.  Apologies for Absence.  

2.  To Confirm the Minutes from the Council Meeting held on 26th September 
2012(Pages 1 - 6) 

3.  To Confirm or Vary the Order of Business on the Agenda.  

4.  Mayor's Communications.  

5.  To receive any Declarations of Interest by Councillors.  

6.  Councillors to answer questions asked in accordance with Rules of 
Procedure 9.  

7.  C/12/09 To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer on the 
Arrangements for Local Choice Non-Pecuniary Interests under the Localism 
Act 2011(Pages 7 - 20) 

8.  C/12/10 To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer on the Appointment 
of Independent Persons (Pages 21 - 28) 

9.  To consider the following motion moved by Councillor A G Martin:  

 IBC resolves to declare that Ipswich will serve as a “Town of Sanctuary” for 
genuine asylum seekers and refugees (sanctuary seekers) that are forced to 
flee from their own countries to avoid persecution or danger. To that end IBC 
will within current resources:- 
 

• Seek to be a welcoming town for refugees and those seeking 
sanctuary 

• Co-operate with Ipswich Town of Sanctuary movement to help develop 
policies and strategies with the community and organisations of 
Ipswich to support sanctuary seekers 

• Work with its staff to ensure that they understand the needs of those 
seeking sanctuary and are able to challenge misinformation in the 



wider community. 
• Look to promote ways of valuing sanctuary seekers through the 

offering of volunteer opportunities both in the wider Ipswich community 
and where possible within IBC. 

10.  To consider nominations/changes of councillors to serve on Committees, 
Panels, Working Groups and Outside Bodies.  

 

 
 
CLAIRE BARRITT 
MONITORING OFFICER & 
HEAD OF CORPORATE SERVICES 
GRAFTON HOUSE 
15 - 17 RUSSELL ROAD 
IPSWICH, IP1 2DE 
 
23

rd
 October 2012 

 



  1

Minutes of the Meeting of the COUNCIL held in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Ipswich on 

Wednesday, 31
st
 October 2012 at 6.00pm 

 
  
Present: 

Councillors: M Blake (Mayor) 
K M Bates 
A J Cann 
J W Carnall 
C M G Chisholm 
H Clarke 
S Connelly 
M L Cook 
H V Crane 
G Debman 
D T Ellesmere 
R E Fern 
C French 
P K Gardiner 
J D Gibbs 
D F Goldsmith 
A W Grant 
T Grant 
C E Jones 
R J Kirby 
W Knowles 
 

 
                                       

  
A J Leeder 
J Le Grys 
N E Macdonald 
A G Martin 
S J M Meudec 
J C Mowles 
R W J Pope 
J F Powell 
W A Quinton 
K J Rawlingson 
A D M Ross 
B Rudkin 
P H L Smart 
C G Stewart 
P Stewart 
J S Stimson 
K A Stroet 
B J Studd 
D J Terry 
R M Vickery 
M L Young 
 

  
The Mayor invited Mrs Shiva Cooper, from the Bahai Faith in Ipswich to open proceedings. 
 

27. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D W Ball, N A Cenci, M Goonan, E M 
Harsant, I E Lockington, and J E Macartney. 

 

28. MINUTES 
 

It was RESOLVED: - 

 

that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 26
th
 September 2012 be confirmed 

as a true record. 
 

29. CONFIRM OR VARY THE ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

It was RESOLVED: - 

that the Order of Business be confirmed as printed on the agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



  2

30.   MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS 
 

  Military Matters 
 
The Mayor was looking forward to welcoming the 1

st
 Battalion the Royal Anglian Regiment 

home from Afghanistan when they march through Ipswich on their homecoming parade on 
Monday 5

th
 November 2012 at 12.30pm. 

 
On Friday 9

th
 November, local schoolchildren will place poppy crosses on graves in the Fields 

of Honour at the Old Cemetery. The Mayor and the Deputy Mayor will be present for this 

service which starts at 10.30am. 

On Sunday 11
th
 November the Mayor hopes to see many of you at the Remembrance Sunday 

Service at the Cenotaph in Christchurch Park. Again, the service gets under way at 10.30am. 

The Mayor was privileged to welcome the Soldier Ride UK at Christchurch Park when they 

came to Ipswich recently, organised by the British Limbless Ex Service Men’s Association.  A 

group of 30 amputee servicemen, women and veterans from the US and UK joined forces to 

conquer a 250-mile cycling trek to raise awareness of the challenges they face after injury.   

The signing of the Military Covenant in Suffolk took place at Suffolk County Council’s offices in 

early October and Ipswich Borough Council was pleased to support this initiative.   

         Thank You 

Ipswich has enjoyed a wonderful array of events this summer, including The Queen’s Jubilee 

celebrations in Christchurch Park, the Olympic Torch, Ipswich Maritime, Larkin Gowen Half 

Marathon, and the Ipswich Skyride to name but a few.  All these events have been supported 

by local volunteers, and Mayor and her Consort had the opportunity to meet some of them 

recently to thank them for their help and hard work.  The Mayor was looking forward to meeting 

the Crucial Crew volunteers in November.   

         Ipswich’s History 

As the mayoral year progresses, the Mayor was learning more and more about the history of 

Ipswich and the Civic Regalia, she was privileged to share this with young guests when they 

visited the Mayor’s Parlour.  The Mayor also recently welcomed a group from the 44
th
 Ipswich 

Brownies as well as the School Council from The Oaks School in Ipswich.    

The launch of the Women’s History Trail took place recently at the Tourist Information Centre 

and the Mayor was very pleased to be invited to attend, and to learn more about the town.   

         Purple Flag Award 

The Mayor and her consort recently took part in the launch of National Purple Flag Week.   

Purple Flag is an accreditation scheme administered by the Association of Town and City 

Centre Management. The accreditation recognises excellence in town and city centre 

management and has a focus on the night-time economy but also includes the day-time 

economy too.  Purple Flag encompasses everything that goes into making a town centre thrive, 

from transport, shopping, safety, to public spaces and events.   Ipswich has been awarded 

Purple Flag status – Well done Ipswich! 

Page 2



  3

Farewell 

It was sad to hear the news that Jack Chapman, former Chairman of The Ipswich Society 

passed away recently.  The Mayor had the honour of presenting him with a special Mayor’s 

Award earlier this year for his dedication, commitment and contribution to the history and future 

of the Town. He will be sadly missed.  

         Panto! 

This year’s Pantomime at the Regent Theatre in Ipswich is “Snow White and the Seven 

Dwarfs”.  The Mayor and her Consort had the opportunity to meet some of the cast recently. 

Christmas is some time away, but The Mayor can’t wait to see the show!  

         Forthcoming Charity events: 
          
         Cheese & Wine – Friday, 16

th
 November, in the Town Hall / SOLD OUT! 

Tour of Christchurch Mansion – Thursday evening, 13
th
 December 2012 

 

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest or dispensations granted. 
 

32. QUESTIONS 

 
The appropriate Members of the Council answered questions on the subjects specified below, 
notice of such questions having been given in accordance with Standing Orders (Rules of 
Procedure) (Section 9):    

 
 

 From  To Issue 
 
1.  Mr P Evans  Councillor Martin Wind Turbine Development  
 
2.  Mr P Evans   Councillor Ellesmere Wind Turbine Presentation  
 
3.  Mr H Shreuder Councillor Martin Wind Turbine 
 
4.  Councillor Debman Councillor Smart  Parking Enforcement 
 
5.  Councillor Debman Councillor Jones Road Works Town Centre 
 
6.      Councillor C Stewart           Councillor Jones                 Site at St Margaret’s Green  
 
7.      Councillor C Stewart Councillor Jones                 Development on Crane’s Site  
 
8.      Councillor Carnall  Councillor Jones Road Works Town Centre  
 
9.      Councillor Pope                  Councillor Cook                   Mobile Communication Devices  
 
10.    Councillor Pope                  Councillor Smart                  Annual Review of Hackney   
                                                                                                Carriage Fares. 

 
11.    Mr K Algar  Councillor Martin                  Wind Turbine Proposed 
                                                                                                 Application 

Page 3



  4

 

33. ARRANGEMENTS FOR LOCAL CHOICE NON- PERCUNIARY INTERESTS UNDER THE 

LOCALISM ACT 2011 REF C/12/09 
 

It was RESOLVED:- 
 

(i) that the following categories of ‘local choice’ Non-Pecuniary Interests (LNPIs) in 

respect of the Suffolk Code of Conduct be adopted: 

1. Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; 

 

2. Anybody: 

 

       (a)   exercising functions of a public nature; 

       (b)  directed to charitable purposes; or 

       (c)  one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or  

              policy (including any political party or trade union); 

 

of which you are a member and in a position of general control or management; 

 

3. Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25. 

 

(ii) that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to make 

consequential changes to the Council’s Constitution.  

 
 

34. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS (C/12/10) 
 

It was RESOLVED: 
 

(i) that the appointment of the 8 individuals listed in Appendix 1 of the report be 

appointed as Independent Persons for the Borough Council for a period of 1 year, 

commencing on the date of this meeting, with an option on the part of the Council 

to extend any appointment for up to 2 years; 

 

(ii) that the joint administration arrangements detailed in the report in respect of the 

pool of Independent Persons be noted; 

 

(iii) that the Council’s Monitoring Officer arranges for a further targeted recruitment 

campaign to be undertaken (with a view to adding to and/or replacing all or some 

of  the pool of Independent Persons), which takes into account the need to attract a 

greater number of applicants to the pool from more diverse backgrounds - the 

selection panel for this exercise is to be determined by the Monitoring Officer in 

consultation with the Chief Executive and the Leader;   

 

(iv) that the Monitoring Officer reports back to Council on the outcome of the further 

recruitment campaign in due course. 

Page 4



  5

35.   Motion – Ipswich Town of Sanctuary  
 
 

It was MOVED by Councillor Martin and seconded by Councillor Cann that: 
 

"IBC resolves to declare that Ipswich will serve as a “Town of Sanctuary” for genuine   
asylum seekers and refugees (sanctuary seekers) that are forced to flee from their own 
countries to avoid persecution or danger. To that end IBC will within current resources:- 
 

• Seek to be a welcoming town for refugees and those seeking sanctuary. 

• Co-operate with Ipswich Town of Sanctuary movement to help develop policies 
and strategies with the community and organisations of Ipswich to support 
sanctuary seekers. 

• Work with its staff to ensure that they understand the needs of those seeking 
sanctuary and are able to challenge misinformation in the wider community. 

• Look to promote ways of valuing sanctuary seekers through the offering of 
volunteer opportunities both in the wider Ipswich community and where possible 
within IBC. 

 

The motion was put to the meeting and CARRIED. 
 

 It was RESOLVED: 
 

that "IBC resolves to declare that Ipswich will serve as a “Town of Sanctuary” for 

genuine   asylum seekers and refugees (sanctuary seekers) that are forced to flee 

from their own countries to avoid persecution or danger. To that end IBC will within 

current resources:- 

 

• Seek to be a welcoming town for refugees and those seeking sanctuary. 

• Co-operate with Ipswich Town of Sanctuary movement to help develop 

policies and strategies with the community and organisations of Ipswich to 

support sanctuary seekers. 

• Work with its staff to ensure that they understand the needs of those 

seeking sanctuary and are able to challenge misinformation in the wider 

community. 

• Look to promote ways of valuing sanctuary seekers through the offering of 

volunteer opportunities both in the wider Ipswich community and where 

possible within IBC. 
 

36. NOMINATIONS/CHANGES OF COUNCILLORS TO SERVE ON COMMITTEES, PANELS, 

WORKING GROUPS AND OUTSIDE BODIES 

 

It was RESOLVED: 
 
that Councillor Chisholm and Councillor Pope be removed as Trustees for the ISCRE Board of 
Trustees and Councillor Chisholm be appointed as Observer to the ISCRE Board of Trustees. 
 
 
The Council rose at 6.56pm 
 

 

MAYOR 

 

Page 5



Page 6



 

1 
 

7 
COMMITTEE: COUNCIL     REF NO: C/12/09 

DATE: 31 OCTOBER 2012 

SUBJECT: ARRANGEMENTS FOR LOCAL CHOICE 

NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS UNDER THE 

LOCALISM ACT 2011 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR ELLESMERE  

DIRECTOR: LAURENCE COLLINS  

Short description of report content and the decision requested:  

Previously, on 20 June 2012, the Council resolved to adopt the local Suffolk Code of 
Conduct for members and made arrangements for the monitoring and enforcement of 
the local code in line with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.  
 

This report provides details of the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) 
Regulations 2012  and presents options in respect of ‘local choice’ non-pecuniary 
interests and recommends  adopting 3 categories of local non-pecuniary interests. 

  
The report also details the provisions in the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012/2089) for 
the Head of the Paid Service to give dispensations to Executive members with ‘conflicts 
of interests’. 

 

List of Appendices included in this report: 

a) Appendix 1 – Suffolk Code of Conduct 

This report has been prepared by Claire Barritt Tel: 01473 432320 

Email: claire.barritt@ipswich.gov.uk 

This report was prepared after consultation with: 

Internal consultees 

Group Leaders 

Chief Executive 

External consultees 

N/A 

The following policies form a context to this report: 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

2 
 

(all relevant policies must also be referred to in the body of the report) 

 

Building a Better Ipswich  

 

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS AS REQUIRED BY LAW 

(papers relied on to write the report but which are not published and do not contain 
exempt information) 

 

 

1. Localism Act 2011 

2. The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 

Information) (England) Regulations 2012 

3. The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 

 

OTHER HELPFUL PAPERS 

(papers which the report author considers might be helpful – this might include published 
material) 

 

None 

  

Page 8



 

3 
 

______________________________________________________________________ 

1.  Introduction  

 
1.1. On 20 June 2012, the Council agreed to adopt the Suffolk Code of Conduct for 

elected and co-opted members in line with the requirements of the Localism Act 
2011, and made arrangements for the monitoring and enforcement of the code. 
These arrangements are consistent with the arrangements recently introduced by 
Suffolk County Council and the 6 other borough/district councils in Suffolk. 

1.2. The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 were 
laid before Parliament on 8 June 2012 and the complete Code of Conduct 
(including the categories of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests referred to the 
Regulations) is now attached as Appendix 1. 

1.3. Nationally, a number of local authority lawyers have been critical of the drafting of 
the regulations relating to interests as they contain a number of ambiguities, 
particularly around the ‘pecuniary’ issues that can arise out of membership of local 
authorities in respect of allowances, members who are council house tenants in 
relation to rent setting, and member who are council tax payers in relation to 
setting the budget.  Previously under the old mandatory Code of Conduct, those 
particular items of business were exempted from being treated as ‘personal and 
prejudicial’ interests. At the time of writing this report, the Government has not yet 
issued any guidance regarding the interpretation of those ‘pecuniary’ interests that 
members may have by virtue of their local authority office, other than to say that if 
a member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter the member can seek a 
dispensation if they wish to participate and/or vote in relation to relevant council 
business where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest.  Dispensations have to 
be applied for in advance and can be granted by either the Monitoring Officer or 
the Audit and Governance Committee, depending on the grounds for the 
dispensation.  

1.4. A view has being taken by some local authorities that provided that the Council 
makes membership of a local authority (and other voluntary or charitable bodies)  
a Local Non-Pecuniary Interest, then even if the financial interest of that authority 
or charity or voluntary body is affected by the item of business,  the member only 
need declare it and can participate and vote on any item of business that 
concerns their LNPIs.  However, this has not yet been tested by the courts, and 
such interest would still be subject to the common law rules concerning actual or 
apparent bias. 

1.5. There is a further change relating to all Executive decision making contained in 
the provisions in the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012/2089) if there is a 
perceived ‘conflict of interest’ on the part of the decision maker(s) in an Executive 
item of business. For all decisions made at Executive meetings, or by the Leader, 
or an Executive Member, and any officers who consult any Executive Member, the 
new regulations provide that the record of the decision must disclose any “conflict 
of interest” declared by any Executive Member and a “note of any dispensation 
granted by the relevant authority’s Head of Paid Service”, i.e. the Chief Executive 
has to be recorded. 

1.6. As yet, no guidance has been issued to the Head of the Paid Service on how to 
apply these new provisions. These regulations do not define “conflict of interest” 
for this purpose – while this would appear to include a disclosable pecuniary 
interest under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, it could also include any 

Page 9



 

4 
 

other circumstance which might amount to common law bias or apparent bias on 
the part of the member. 
 

2. Background 

 
2.1 The Appendix to the Suffolk Code gives the Description of Categories of 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as specified within the Relevant Authorities 
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.  It is a requirement of the 
Localism Act 2011 that Councillors and co-opted members record and declare 
their interests and those of any “relevant person”.  The relevant person is either: 

a) the spouse or civil partner of the Councillor or co-opted member; 

b) a person with whom the Councillor or co-opted member is living as husband 
or wife or as civil partners. 

2.2 The Government has subsequently issued guidance to the effect that members 
need not disclose spouses/partners interests as a separate category provided that 
such interests are included as their own interests on the form. 
 

2.3 By the time of this meeting, all Councillors will have completed the new 
registration forms in respect of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests that they may 
have. An ‘awareness session’ in respect of the consequential requirements that 
flow from having such interests will take place before the start of the meeting on 
31 October 2010 and the Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer are 
available during normal business hours  to assist with any questions members 
may have about the new arrangements in relation to their interests and the impact 
on any council business. 

 
2.4 The main consequence for a member that has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 

(DPI) is that they cannot participate or vote on any item of business that concerns 
that interest, unless a dispensation has been obtained.  To participate and vote on 
business in which the member has a DPI without a dispensation is now a criminal 
offence under the Localism Act.  

 
2.5 In the case of non-pecuniary interests, the Localism Act provides that each council 

may adopt whatever categories of Local Non-Pecuniary Interests (LNPIs), they 
feel are necessary in their area. If the Council chooses to adopt LNPIs, then the 
effect on Councillors is that they must register them, but can still participate and 
vote on business that concerns those interests – provided that such interest is not 
subject to the law relating to bias, for example, where the interest has so great an 
effect on the item of business that it would be contrary to the Nolan principles, and 
therefore not appropriate for the member to participate in a particular  item 
business relating to any particular LNPI.  

 
2.6 If a Councillor with a LNPI forgets or fails to disclose their LNPI at a meeting 

where an item of business concerning such an interest is being considered, this 
would amount to a breach of the local code (and also potentially challengeable 
under the rules relating to actual or apparent bias), but it would not be a criminal 
offence. 

 

Page 10



 

5 
 

2.7 Guidance is available from the Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer if 
any member is concerned about any of their interests and the impact they may 
have on the conduct of council business. 

 
2.8 This report recommends that Council adopts the following categories of Local 

Non-Pecuniary Interests, which are based on the remaining categories of 
‘personal’ interests that previously required registration under the old mandatory 
national code: 

• Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; 

 

• Any body- 
o exercising functions of a public nature; 
o directed to charitable purposes; or 
o one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or 

policy (including any political party or trade union); 

of which you are a member and in a position of general control or 
management; 

 

• Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25. 

 

3. Relevant Policies 

 
3.1 The Disclosable Pecuniary Interest categories are laid down by regulation.  The 

recommendations in respect of the ‘local choice’ for non-pecuniary interests are 
based on the categories that were included in previous national mandatory code, 
and which have been adopted by the other 7 Suffolk Authorities. 
 

4. Options Considered / Under Consideration 

 
4.1 The options under consideration are a) whether to adopt the local choice non-

pecuniary interest categories in line with the rest of Suffolk or b) to have ones 
particular to Ipswich, or c) not to have any. 
 

5. Consultations 

 
5.1 Consultation has taken place with the other Suffolk Monitoring Officers and the 

Leaders of the Suffolk local authorities and there is a consensus that adopting the 
Local Non-Pecuniary Interest categories adds to consistency in terms of how the 
local code will operate, especially for ‘twin hatted’ members who serve on more 
than one authority. There is also a view that requiring councillors to declare non-
pecuniary interests adds to the transparency of decision making. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 

6 
 

6. Risk Management 

 

Risk 

Description 

Consequence 

of risk  

Risk Controls  Probability 

of risk 

occurring 

taking 

account of 

controls 

(scale A-F)  

A – very 

likely 

F – almost 

impossibl

e  

Impact of 

risk, if it 

occurred 

taking 

account of 

actions 

(scale 1 – 

catastrophic

; 4 – 

negligible) 

Actions to 

mitigate 

risk  

That the 
council does 
not put in 
place any 
categories 
for LNPIs 

That decision 
making is not 
as transparent 
as it could be; 
Possible 
confusion for 
twin hatted 
councillors 

Consult on the 
need for local 
choice 
categories 

D 4 Make 
recommend
ations to 
council 

 

7. Environmental Impact Assessment 

 
7.1 There is no environmental impact arising out of this report. 

 

8.  Equalities and Diversity Implications 

8.1 Under the general equality duty as set out in the Equality Act 2010, public 
authorities are required to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation as well as advancing equality of 
opportunity and fostering good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not.  
 

8.2 The protected grounds covered by the equality duty are: age, disability, sex, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, and 
sexual orientation. The equality duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, 
but only in respect of eliminating unlawful discrimination. 

 
8.3 The law requires that this duty to have due regard be demonstrated in decision 

making processes. Assessing the potential impact on equality of proposed 
changes to policies, procedures and practices is one of the key ways in which 
public authorities can demonstrate that they have had due regard to the aims of 
the equality duty." 

 
8.4 The requirement to register interests and to make declarations at meetings 

applies to all Councillors and co-opted members in the same way irrespective of 
any particular special responsibilities they made hold,.  As such no adverse 
impact has been detected in respect of any groups with protected characteristics. 

 
 

Page 12



 

7 
 

9.  Financial Considerations 

 
9.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report. 
 

10. Legal Considerations 

 
10.1 Councillors are obliged by the provisions of the Localism Act 2011 to comply with 

the regulations relating to Disclosable Pecuniary interests.  The Act provides for 
local discretion with regard to non-pecuniary interests. 
 

10.2 The perceived ambiguity in the current regulations may be clarified by 
Government guidance or by the courts at some point. 

 

11. Performance Monitoring 

 
11.1 The Monitoring Officer will arrange for members to register their local non-

pecuniary interests with a target date for registration of 28 days from the date of 
the decision to adopt any categories in respect of non-pecuniary interests.  
 

12. Conclusions 

12.1  The main advantage of the Council adopting Local Non Pecuniary Interest 
categories is that it aids openness and transparency of decision making but does 
not preclude a Councillor from participating in council business where that 
business may affect any disclosed LNPI.  

 

13. Recommendations 

 

13.1 That the Council adopts the following categories of ‘local choice’ Non-

Pecuniary Interests (LNPIs) in respect of the Suffolk Code of Conduct: 

1. Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control 

or management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the 

Council; 

 

2. Any body: 

 

(a) exercising functions of a public nature; 

(b) directed to charitable purposes; or 

(c) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion 

or policy (including any political party or trade union); 

 

of which you are a member and in a position of general control or 

management; 

 

3. Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25. 

 

13.2  That the Head of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to make 

consequential changes to the Council’s Constitution. 

 

 

Page 13



 

8 
 

 

 

Page 14



 

9 
 

  

APPENDIX 1 

 

IPSWICH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Suffolk Local Code of Conduct for Members 
 
In accordance with S 26 to 37 of the Localism Act 2011 on 20

th
 June 2012 Ipswich 

Borough Council (the Council) resolved to adopt the Suffolk Local Code of Conduct 
for the purposes of discharging its duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct within its area. 
 
Until otherwise amended or replaced by a decision of the Council, the Suffolk Local 
Code of Conduct set out below shall hereafter apply to all elected members and any 
co-opted members entitled to vote on any decisions of the council or its committees, 
sub committees or joint committees when acting in their capacity as a member of the 
Council. 

Preamble  

The Suffolk Local Code of Conduct shall be interpreted in accordance with the 
following 7 principles of public life identified by the Committee on Standards in Public 
Life chaired by Lord Nolan:  

Selflessness - Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 
interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 
themselves, their family, or their friends.  

Integrity - Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial 
or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to influence 
them in the performance of their official duties.  

Objectivity - In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, 
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of 
public office should make choices on merit.  

Accountability - Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and 
actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate 
to their office.  

Openness - Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the 
decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their decisions 
and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly demands.  

Honesty - Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests 
relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a 
way that protects the public interest.  

Leadership - Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by 
leadership and example.  

 

Page 15



 

10 
 

SUFFOLK LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT APPLICABLE TO ELECTED MEMBERS 

AND CO-OPTEES APPOINTED TO THE COUNTY, BOROUGH, DISTRICT AND 

PARISH COUNCILS IN SUFFOLK 
 
1. You must treat others with respect. 
 
2. You must not — 

(1) do anything which may cause your council to breach any of the Council’s 
duties under the Equality Act 2010 

(2) bully any person; 
(3) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be — 

(a) a complainant, 
(b) a witness, or 
(c) involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings, in 

relation to an allegation that a member (including yourself) has 
failed to comply with his or her council’s Code of Conduct; or 

(4) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, your council. 

 
3. You must not — 

(1) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information 
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of 
a confidential nature, except where— 

 
(a) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
(b) you are required by law to do so; 
(c) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 

professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to 
disclose the information to any other person; or 

(d) the disclosure is reasonable, in the public interest, made in good 
faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the 
council; or 

 
(2) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that 

person is entitled by law 
 
4. You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be 
regarded as bringing your office or council into disrepute. 
 
5. You — 

(1) must not use or attempt to use your position as a member improperly to 
confer on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or 
disadvantage; and 

(2) must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your 
council — 
(a) act in accordance with your council's reasonable requirements; 
(b) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes  

(including party political purposes); and 
(3) must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 

under the Local Government Act 1986. 

Page 16



 

11 
 

6. (1) When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any relevant 
advice provided to you by— 

(a) your council's chief finance officer; or 
(b) your council’s monitoring officer; 
(c) your council’s head of paid service; or 
(d) any other officer, 
where that officer is acting pursuant to his or her statutory duties. 

 
6. (2) You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory 

requirements and any reasonable additional requirements imposed by your council. 
 

7. Registration of Interests  
 
7.1. You must register within 28 days of becoming a member of the Council (and to 

notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer of any changes within 28 days) any 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) you may have for publication in the Register 
of Members’ Interests. (See Appendix A to this Code.) 

 
7.2. You may not at any time discharge any function or participate in any Council 

business or discussions, or vote on any issues that relate to or concern any of your 
DPIs where you are aware that you have a relevant DPI.  You may not remain in 
the chamber or meeting room or in the public gallery when any matter that relates 
to any of your DPI is under discussion or debate unless you have requested and 
obtained a written dispensation from your Council’s Monitoring Officer in advance of 
the relevant meeting. 

 
7.3. You must register within 28 days of becoming a member of the Council (and notify 

your Council’s Monitoring Officer of any changes within 28 days) any non statutory 
Local Non Pecuniary Interests (LNPIs) set out in Appendix A to this Code but you 
may participate in any discussions or debates relating to or concerning any of your 
LNPIs after the date of registration.  

 
7.4. You must declare any DPIs or LNPIs to a meeting where business is relevant to 

those interests, including those interests that are already registered with the 
Monitoring Officer or where registration is pending. 

 
7.5. You must register, within 28 days, any gifts and hospitality received by you in 

accordance with the instructions issued within your Council by the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 
7.6. The Council’s Register of Interests will be available for inspection at the Council 

offices during normal office hours, and will be published on the Council’s website. 
 

8. Sensitive Interests 

 
You may also apply to your Council’s Monitoring officer for non publication of the 
full details of any of your DPIs or LNPIs where you reasonably believe that 
publication of the details of a particular DPI or LNPI could result in your being 
subjected to violence or intimidation.  In considering such applications the 
Monitoring Officer shall have regard to any representations made by you in 
determining whether he or she considers the relevant DPI or LNPPI should be 

Page 17



 

12 
 

treated as a Sensitive Interest and excluded from the published version of the 
Register of Members’ Interests. 

Page 18



 

13 
 

Appendix A to the Suffolk Code of Conduct 

 

Part 1 

 

Description of categories of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
You have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Council if it is of a 
description set out in 1 - 7 below and is either: 

(a)  An interest of yours 
(b)    An interest of your spouse or civil partner 
(c)     An interest of a person with whom you are living as husband and wife or as 

civil partners  
 and, in the case of paragraphs (b) and (c), you are aware that they have the 

interest.  
 
In these descriptions the term “relevant Person” is used to mean you as member and any 
such person as set out in paragraphs (b) and (c) 
 
1   Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
 
2 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 

Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred in carrying out your duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses.  This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 
1992 other than from a registered political party. 

 
3 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where - 
   

(1) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
the Council; and 

(2)  either: 
(a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
persons has beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
4 Any contract which is made between the relevant person, or a body in which they 

have a beneficial interest, and the Council -  
(1) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and 
(2) which has not been fully discharged.  

 
5 Any beneficial interest in any land in the Council’s area. 
  
6 Any tenancy where to your knowledge (a) the landlord is the Council and (b) the 

tenant is a body in which a relevant person has a beneficial interest. 
 
7 Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the Council’s area for a 

month or longer.  

Page 19



 

14 
 

 

Part 2 

 

Description of categories of Local Non Pecuniary Interests 

 

1 Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management and to which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; 

 
2 Any body- 

(a) exercising functions of a public nature; 
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or 
(c) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or 

policy (including any political party or trade union); 

of which you are a member and in a position of general control or management; 
 

3 Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 
value of at least £25. 

 

 

Page 20



1 
 

8 

COMMITTEE:  COUNCIL     REF NO: C/12/10 

DATE:   31 OCTOBER 2012 

SUBJECT:   APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:  COUNCILLOR ELLESMERE 

DIRECTOR:  LAURENCE COLLINS 

Short description of report content and the decision requested:  

This report concerns the appointment of Independent Persons under the Localism Act 

2011. 

 

 

List of Appendices included in this report: 

a) Appendix 1 – List of appointees  

 

This report has been prepared by Claire Barritt Tel: 01473 432320  

Email: claire.barritt@ipswich.gov.uk 

This report was prepared after consultation with: 

Internal consultees 

Chief Executive 

Leader of the Council 

External consultees 

Suffolk Monitoring Officers 

Leaders of the Suffolk Local Authorities 

The following policies form a context to this report: 

(all relevant policies must also be referred to in the body of the report) 

 

Building a Better Ipswich  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 21



2 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS AS REQUIRED BY LAW 

(papers relied on to write the report but which are not published and do not contain 
exempt information) 

 

1. Localism Act 2011 

2. Suffolk Local Code of Conduct 

 

OTHER HELPFUL PAPERS 

(papers which the report author considers might be helpful – this might include published 
material) 

 

None 

 

Page 22



3 
 

 

______________________________________________________________________ 

1.  Introduction  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to recommend that the Council appoints a pool of 

‘Independent Persons’ pursuant to section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011 to 
discharge the statutory role in connection with any complaints under the Suffolk 
Code of Conduct that was adopted by Council on 20

th
 June 2012. 

 

1.2 The role of Independent Person is a new one under the Act.  The functions of the 
Independent Person(s) are: 
 
a) they must be consulted by the authority before it makes a finding as to 

whether a member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct or decides 
on action to be taken in respect of that member (this means on a decision to 
take no action where the investigation finds no evidence of breach or, where 
the investigation finds evidence that there has been a breach, on any 
resolution of the complaint, or on any finding of a breach and on any decision 
on action as  a result of that finding); 

b) they may be consulted by the authority in respect of a standards complaint at 
any other stage; and 

c) they may be consulted by a member or co-opted member of the Council 
against whom a complaint has been made. 

1.3 In summary, the statutory role of an Independent Person is to act as a formal 
consultee/adviser in respect of any complaints received under the Suffolk Code of 
Conduct.  The Monitoring Officer is required to seek a view from one of the 
‘Independent Persons’ in line with the process previously ratified by Council at the 
meeting on 20 June 2012. 

 

2. Background 

 
2.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires councils to appoint at least one Independent 

Person whose views should be obtained and taken into account before a decision 
is taken on a standards complaint. At its meeting on 20

th
 June 2012, the Council 

approved arrangements for a countywide pool of ‘Independent Persons’ with each 
Council being able to instruct any one from the ‘pool’. 

 
2.2 The vacancies for the Independent Members Pool were advertised by Suffolk 

County Council in the East Anglian Daily Times and following a selection and 
interview process conducted by three of the 8 Suffolk Monitoring Officers, the 
eight individuals whose profiles appear at Appendix 1 have been recommended 
for appointment across the County. The intention is that the “pool” of Independent 
Persons will be appointed by each authority in Suffolk, so that any authority can 
call on a number of different people to carry out the role, providing resilience, 
flexibility and a timely response.   

2.3 25 applications (20 men and five women) were received and 14 candidates (12 
men and two women) were interviewed by Tim Ryder (the County Council’s 
Monitoring Officer), Kathryn Saward (Monitoring Officer for Babergh and Mid 
Suffolk District Councils) and Hilary Slater (Monitoring Officer for Suffolk Coastal 

Page 23



4 
 

District Council). 
 

2.4 Eight  people have been recommended to Council by the selection panel – Roger 
Bailey; Arnold Barrow; Andrew George; Carey Godfrey; Andrew Peck; Kevin 
Williams, Graham Moss and Phillip Key.  A short paragraph about each person is 
included in Appendix 1.  The appointment of the Independent Person(s) must be 
agreed by Council.   

2.5 The recommendation in respect of these candidates is that each appointment will 
be for a period of one year, with an option to renew for a further two years. 

 

3. Relevant Policies 

 
3.1 It is a statutory requirement that the Council must appoint at least one 

Independent Person, such appointment to be approved by a majority of 
Councillors at a Council meeting.  
 

4. Options Considered / Under Consideration 

 
4.1 The options are to appoint only one Independent Person or to appoint a pool, and 

to appoint each person for one or more years (up to a maximum of 4 years). If 
none of the recommended appointments are deemed suitable by a majority of 
Councillors, the Council could conduct a separate fresh recruitment exercise   
 

5. Consultations 

 
5.1 Consultation has taken place via all 8 Suffolk Monitoring Officers regarding the 

appointments and with the respective Leaders.  The County Council and the other 
6 Councils have appointed the recommended candidates (where so eligible) 
detailed in the appendix, although the lack of diversity within the pool has been 
commented upon. 
 

6. Risk Management 

 
Risk 

Description 

Consequence of 

risk  

Risk 

Controls  

Probability of 

risk occurring 

taking account 

of controls 

(scale A-F)  

A – very likely 

F – almost 

impossible  

Impact of risk, 

if it occurred 

taking account 

of actions 

(scale 1 – 

catastrophic; 4 

– negligible) 

Actions to 

mitigate risk  

Failure to 
appoint an 
independent 
member 

Failure to comply 
with statutory 
duty 

Make an 
appointment 

F 3 Council make 
the 
appointment 

Appointees 
have 
Insufficient 
experience or 
are not 
available to 
deal with 
complaints 
due to 

Complaints are 
handled badly or 
are delayed 

Appoint a 
pool including 
some 
experienced 
ex standards 
committee 
independent 
members 
 

F 3 Ensure that 
all member 
of the pool 
are given 
training on 
the code of 
conduct and 
complaints 
handling 

Page 24



5 
 

absence or 
conflicts 

 

7. Environmental Impact Assessment 

 
7.1 There are no direct environmental impacts arising out of the recommendations in 

this report. 
 

8.  Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 
8.1 Under the general equality duty as set out in the Equality Act 2010, public 

authorities are required to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation as well as advancing equality of 
opportunity and fostering good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not.  
 

8.2 The protected grounds covered by the equality duty are: age, disability, sex, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, and 
sexual orientation. The equality duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, 
but only in respect of eliminating unlawful discrimination. 
 

8.3 The law requires that this duty to have due regard be demonstrated in decision 
making processes. Assessing the potential impact on equality of proposals in 
respect of changes to policies, procedures and practices is one of the key ways in 
which public authorities can demonstrate that they have had due regard to the 
aims of the equality duty. 
 

8.4 The vacancies were publicly advertised in the local press across Suffolk.  The 
recommendations regarding appointment are being made on merit based in line 
with the normal recruitment and selection criteria for local authority appointments, 
were assessed by the mix gender panel of 3 experienced Monitoring Officers. It 
should be noted that the outcome of the process has resulted in a lack of female 
or ethnic minority representation within the potential pool as the recommended 
appointees are all males from the same ethnicity group.  It is therefore 
recommended  that when future vacancies arise that additional publicity is issued 
in a manner that increases the number of applications from persons with 
protected characteristics, and that this Council considers a further recruitment 
exercise to increase diversity within the pool. 
 

9.  Financial Considerations 

 
9.1 Suffolk County Council will act as administration authority in respect of payments 

and expenses.  In line with the delegation given to the Monitoring Officer, each 
Council will pay the County Council for the cost of one Independent Person in the 
pool at a cost of £300 per annum per authority.  

 
9.2 Each Council will additionally pay the individual independent person £50 per 

complaint referral, but only in respect of those complaints which have been the 
subject of a formal investigation. 

 

Page 25



6 
 

9.3 Any expenses claims should be minimal, as the Independent Persons will be 
contacted via telephone, letter and email, and they are not required to attend any 
meetings. 

 
9.4 The newspaper advertising costs for the recruitment campaign carried out to date 

has been shared equally among the 8 Councils. 
 

10. Legal Considerations 

 
10.1 The Council has a legal duty to appoint at least one Independent Person under 

the Localism Act 2011. 
 

11. Performance Monitoring 

 
11.1 That the Independent Persons are offered training on the Code of Conduct and 

complaints handling within 2 months of appointment. 
 

12. Conclusions 

 
12.1 The appointment of a pool of Independent Persons (as opposed to just one) will 

give the Council access to a pool of expertise as well as adequate cover for any 
absence cover, including the ability to ensure that if any particular Independent 
Person is ‘conflicted’ out of acting as a formal consultee/adviser, another is 
available. The recommendations are in line with the other Suffolk Authority 
appointments, but a further recruitment exercise will be necessary if the Council 
wishes to have a greater diversity within the pool of Independent Persons. 

 

13. Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that:  

 

13.1 Council agree the appointment of the 8 individuals listed in Appendix 1 as 

Independent Persons for the Borough Council for a period of 1 year, 

commencing on the date of this meeting, with an option on the part of the 

Council to extend any appointment for up to 2 years; 

 

13.2 Council notes the joint administration arrangements detailed in the report in 

respect of the pool of Independent Persons; 

 

13.3 the Council’s Monitoring Officer arranges for a further targeted recruitment 

campaign to be undertaken (with a view to adding to and/or replacing all or 

some of  the pool of Independent Persons), which takes into account the 

need to attract a greater number of applicants to the pool from more diverse 

backgrounds - the selection panel for this exercise is to be determined by 

the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Chief Executive and the 

Leader;   

 

13.4  the Monitoring Officer reports back to Council on the outcome of the further 

recruitment campaign in due course. 

Page 26



7 
 

APPENDIX 1  
 
 

BIOGRAPHIES OF RECOMMENDED INDEPENDENT PERSONS 

 

Roger Bailey 
The Council is recommended to appoint Mr Roger Bailey as an Independent Person for 
this authority.  Mr Bailey retired as the Chief Executive of East Herts District Council in 
2002 and since that time has worked at several local authorities on an interim basis, 
most recently at Colchester Borough Council.  Mr Bailey lives in Woodbridge. 
 

Arnold Barrow 
The Council is recommended to appoint Mr Arnold Barrow as an Independent Person for 
this authority.  Mr Barrow served as Chief Probation Officer in Suffolk between 1984 and 
2001, and has been an Independent Community Member of the Mid Suffolk Standards 
Committee since 2008.  Mr Barrow moved to Suffolk in 1978 and lives in Stowmarket. 
 

Andrew George 
The Council is recommended to appoint Mr Andrew George as an Independent Person 
for this authority.  Mr George is a member of the Audit and Healthcare Subcommittees of 
the Ipswich Hospital Trust, and has been an Independent Community Member of the 
Babergh Standards Committee.  Mr George lives in Wivenhoe. 
 

Carey Godfrey 
The Council is recommended to appoint Mr Carey Godfrey as an Independent Person for 
this authority.  Mr Godfrey was previously Suffolk County Council’s Drug and Alcohol 
Team Co-ordinator, and is a former Independent Member of Suffolk Police Authority.  He 
is an Independent Member on the County Performance (Adoption) Panel.  Mr Godfrey 
lives in Ipswich (Babergh District Council). 
 

Phillip Key 
The Council is recommended to appoint Mr Phillip Key as an Independent Person for this 
authority.  Mr Key has been a Magistrate since 1997 and was a member of the Suffolk 
Probation Board until 2010.  Mr Key has been an Independent Community Member of 
Suffolk County Council’s Standards Committee since September 2010.  Mr Key resides 
in Lowestoft.   
 

Graham Moss 
The Council is recommended to appoint Mr Graham Moss as an Independent Person for 
this authority.  Mr Moss retired from Suffolk Constabulary in January 2012 after 32 years’ 
service, and has been an Independent Community Member of Suffolk County Council’s 
Standards Committee since September 2010.  Mr Moss was born in Suffolk and resides 
in Woolpit. 
 

Andrew Peck 
The Council is recommended to appoint Dr Andrew Peck as an Independent Person for 
this authority.  Dr Peck is a semi-retired solicitor (non-practising) with 25 years partner 
level experience.  He has also been involved in a wide range of Committees at Milton 
Keynes Council, including as a Co-opted Independent Member of their Audit Committee 
and various other roles with amongst others the Open University and the Homes and 
Communities Agency.  Born in Ipswich, Dr Peck has recently returned to the county and 
now lives in Felixstowe. 

Page 27



8 
 

 

Kevin Williams 
The Council is recommended to appoint Mr Kevin Williams as an Independent Person 
for this authority.  Mr Williams is the former Headteacher of Westbourne High School in 
Ipswich and has been a Co-opted Independent Member of Suffolk Coastal District 
Council’s Standards Committee since 2002.  Mr Williams lives in Felixstowe. 
 

Page 28


	Agenda
	2 To Confirm the Minutes from the Council Meeting held on 26th September 2012
	7 C/12/09 To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer on the Arrangements for Local Choice Non-Pecuniary Interests under the Localism Act 2011
	8 C/12/10 To consider a report from the Monitoring Officer on the Appointment of Independent Persons

